
CITY OF ANNAPOLIS 
A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, September 24, 2012 6:00 p.m.  
 

Call to Order Mayor Cohen 
 
Pledge of Allegiance  Mayor Cohen 
 
Roll Call City Clerk Watkins-Eldridge 
 

BUSINESS AND MISCELLANEOUS 
 

1. Proposed Closed Session - Pursuant to State Government Article § 10-508 
(a) (7); to consult with counsel to obtain legal advice on a legal matters. 

 
 
 

 

Page 1



 

 

 

City of Annapolis 
Office of the City Clerk 
93 Main Street, Suite 300 
Annapolis, MD 21401-2535 
 

RCEldridge@annapolis.gov · 410-263-7942 · Fax 410-280-1853 · TDD 410-263-7943 · www.annapolis.gov 

 
MEMORANDUM   
 
TO:  Annapolis City Council 
 
FROM: Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC 
  City Clerk 
 
RE:  Closed Meeting 
 

A closed session of the City Council has been proposed for Monday, September 24, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. 
in the City Council Chamber, 160 Duke of Gloucester Street, 2nd Floor, Annapolis, Maryland 21401 in 
accordance with Maryland State Government Article Sections § 10-508 (a)(7): 
 

  To consult with counsel to obtain legal advice on a legal matters. 
  
 Topic of Discussion: 
  
 Quarterly Update on Litigation 

 
The Council will convene in open session and move pursuant to Maryland State Government Article, 
Sections: 10-508 (a) (7) to go into closed session as indicated above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc:   City Manager 
 Public Information Officer 
 Press 

Page 2



CITY OF ANNAPOLIS 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

September 24, 2012 7:00 p.m. 
 

Call to Order Mayor Cohen 
Invocation Alderman Pfeiffer 
Pledge of Allegiance  Mayor Cohen 
Roll Call City Clerk Watkins-Eldridge 

 
PETITIONS, REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

Recognition of Richard McFeely Chief Pristoop 
Recognition of Cpl. Duane Daniels Chief Pristoop 
City Council Citation to Just Cruzin’ Corvette Club Alderwoman Finlayson 
Reports by Committees 

           Comments by the General Public 

A person appearing before the City Council with a petition, report or communication  
shall be limited to a presentation of not more than three minutes. 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
CA-4-12  Designating Emergency Preparedness and Risk Management Responsibility to the City 

of Annapolis Fire Department – For the purpose of making the City Charter consistent with 
the City Code by designating emergency preparedness and risk management responsibility to 
the City of Annapolis Fire Department.  

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/23/12 9/24/12 9/14/12 10/19/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 7/23/12   

 

O-27-12  Removing the Requirement that a Certified Public Accountant Attest to Ratio Reports for 
Restaurants Renewing Their Alcoholic Beverage Licenses – For the purpose of removing 
the requirement that a certified public accountant attest to the ratio reports that restaurant class 
alcoholic beverage licensees must provide when renewing their licenses and instead allowing 
the owner to provide a sworn statement regarding the ratio of food and liquor sales. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/23/12 9/24/12 9/14/12 10/19/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 7/23/12   

 

Page 3



Special Meeting of the City Council 
September 24, 2012                                                                                      Page 2 

 
O-28-12  Amending the Procedures for the Sale and Rental of Moderately Priced Dwelling Units – 

For the purpose of amending the procedures for the sale and rental of moderately priced 
dwelling units. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 180 Day Rule 

7/23/12 9/24/12 9/14/12 1/21/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 7/23/12   

Planning Commission 7/23/12   

 
 

LEGISLATIVE ACTIONS 
ORDINANCE and RESOLUTIONS – 2ND READING 

O-16-12  Distribution of Unsolicited Materials – For the purpose of establishing Section 11.36.025 of 
the Code of the City of Annapolis regarding the distribution of unsolicited materials.  Alderman 
Arnett requested to be added as a co-sponsor on 2nd Reader. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

4/23/12 6/11/12 5/4/12 7/27/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Public Safety 4/23/12 
6/14/12 
7/16/12 
9/17/12 

Favorable 
Recommends 
postponement 

 

R-34-12  Establishing a Fine for Violations of Distributing Unsolicited Materials – For the purpose of 
establishing a fine for violations of distributing unsolicited materials. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12 N/A 7/17/12 10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 7/9/12 N/A N/A 

Public Safety 7/9/12 
7/16/12 
9/17/12 

Recommends 
postponement 

 

R-41-12 Phelps Lane – For the purpose of declaring that Middle Way shall be renamed “Phelps Lane” to 
honor the contributions of the Phelps Family to the City of Annapolis.  Alderman Silverman 
requested to be added as a co-sponsor on 2nd Reader. 

Page 4



Special Meeting of the City Council 
September 24, 2012                                                                                      Page 3 

 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  
and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/10/12 N/A 9/14/12 12/7/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Public Safety 9/10/12 9/17/12 Favorable 

 
 

CHARTER AMENDMENTS, ORDINANCES and RESOLUTIONS – 1st READING 
CA-1-12  Non-Partisan Elections – For the purpose of amending the Charter of the City of Annapolis to 

provide for non-partisan elections for the offices of Mayor and Aldermen and Alderwomen; filling 
vacancies in these offices; and removing partisan consideration in the composition and 
membership of the Board of Supervisors of Elections. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 9/24/12   

 
CA-2-12  Municipal Elections Coinciding with State of Maryland Elections in 2018 and Onward – 

For the purpose of amending the Charter of the City of Annapolis to establish the dates of the 
primary and general elections to coincide with the State of Maryland in 2018 and extending the 
length of time in office for the incoming City Council in December 2013 an additional year to 
December 2018 in order to facilitate this transition period. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 9/24/12   

 
CA-3-12  City Finance Requirements – For the purpose of amending the Charter of the City of 

Annapolis to establish an unrestricted fund balance as part of the annual budget process, 
authorizing an Audit Committee; and setting a time line for the Finance Director to provide the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report to the City Council. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Page 5



Special Meeting of the City Council 
September 24, 2012                                                                                      Page 4 

 
Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 9/24/12   

 
O-36-12  Permitted Hours of Sidewalk Cafes – For the purpose of authorizing permitted sidewalk cafes 

to remain open during the normal business hours governing such establishments. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 9/24/12   

 

O-30-12  Parking and Storage of Automobiles, Motorcycles, Trailers, Motor Homes, Recreational 
Vehicles, Boats, and Personal Watercraft in Residential Zoning Districts – For the purpose 
of designating certain areas for parking and storage of automobiles, motorcycles, trailers, motor 
homes, recreational vehicles, boats, and personal watercraft in residential zoning districts. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 9/24/12   

 

R-39-12  Fines Schedule Updated for Violations of Parking and Storage of Automobiles, 
Motorcycles, Trailers, Motor Homes, Recreational Vehicles, Boats, and Personal 
Watercraft in Undesignated Areas within Residential Zoning Districts – For the purpose of 
establishing a fine for parking and storage of automobiles, motorcycles, trailers, motor homes, 
recreational vehicles, boats, and personal watercraft in undesignated areas within residential 
zoning districts. 

 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  
and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 9/24/12   

 

R-42-12  Colonel John Ripley Memorial 5K Race – For the purpose of authorizing City Council 
approval of the Colonel John Ripley Memorial 5K Race per R-14-12, implementing a 

Page 6



Special Meeting of the City Council 
September 24, 2012                                                                                      Page 5 

 
moratorium on administrative approvals for events at City Dock; and the reimbursement of full 
fees to the City for the cost associated with the event. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 9/24/12   

 
R-43-12  Eastport Yacht Club Lights Parade – For the purpose of authorizing City Council approval of 

the Eastport Yacht Club Lights Parade per R-14-12, implementing a moratorium on 
administrative approvals for events at City Dock and waiving the reimbursement of full fees to 
the City for the cost associated with the event on December 8, 2012. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 9/24/12   

Economic Matters 9/24/12   

 
R-44-12  TCS Annapolis Half Marathon – For the purpose of authorizing City Council approval of the 

TCS Annapolis Half Marathon per R-14-12, implementing a moratorium on administrative 
approvals for events at City Dock; designating Saturday, December 1, 2012 as a date for the 
sale of arts-related merchandise in the Historic District in conjunction with the event; and the 
reimbursement of full fees to the City for the cost associated with the event. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 9/24/12   

 
R-45-12  Abney Lane – For the purpose of declaring that South Bates Street in the College Creek 

Terrace Community shall be renamed “Abney Lane” to honor the contributions of the Abney 
Family to the City of Annapolis. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Public Safety 9/24/12   

 
Page 7



Special Meeting of the City Council 
September 24, 2012                                                                                      Page 6 

 
 

BUSINESS and MISCELLANEOUS 
1. Appointments and re-appointments 

 
 

UPCOMING CITY COUNCIL EVENTS 
Regular Meeting; Monday, October 8, 2012 7:00 p.m. City Council Chambers 
Work Session; Thursday, October 18, 2012 1:30-4:30 p.m. City Council Chambers 
Special Meeting; Monday, October 22, 2012 7:00 p.m. City Council Chambers 
 

Page 8



	 	 	 
Jessica Cowles  
Legislative and Policy Analyst    
City of Annapolis Office of Law  
E)   JCCowles@annapolis.gov 
P)   410‐263‐1184 
F)   410‐268‐3916 

September 19, 2012 
 
TO:  The Capital Legal Notices: legalad@capgaz.com  
FROM:  Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst 
RE:  Notice of Public Hearing 
PUBLISH:  Please publish on: Sunday, September 23, 2012 and Monday, September 24, 2012 
 
Please send bill and certificate of publication to the City of Annapolis Office of Law, 93 Main Street, 3rd 
Floor, Annapolis, MD 21401. 

 
****************************************** 

NOTICE OF ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING 
Notice is hereby given that the Annapolis City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, September 
24, 2012 at 7:00 p.m., in City Council Chambers, 160 Duke of Gloucester Street, Annapolis, for a public 
hearing on: 
 
CA-4-12  Designating Emergency Preparedness and Risk Management Responsibility to the 

City of Annapolis Fire Department – For the purpose of making the City Charter 
consistent with the City Code by designating emergency preparedness and risk 
management responsibility to the City of Annapolis Fire Department.  

O-27-12  Removing the Requirement that a Certified Public Accountant Attest to Ratio 
Reports for Restaurants Renewing Their Alcoholic Beverage Licenses – For the 
purpose of removing the requirement that a certified public accountant attest to the ratio 
reports that restaurant class alcoholic beverage licensees must provide when renewing 
their licenses and instead allowing the owner to provide a sworn statement regarding the 
ratio of food and liquor sales. 

O-28-12  Amending the Procedures for the Sale and Rental of Moderately Priced Dwelling 
Units – For the purpose of amending the procedures for the sale and rental of moderately 
priced dwelling units. 

The above legislation on the City Council agenda for public hearing can be viewed on the City=s website 
at: http://www.annapolis.gov/Government/Departments/LawOffice/PendingLegis.aspx  

  

Page 9



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 
Charter Amendment No. CA-4-12 4 

 5 
Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 

 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/23/12   10/19/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 7/23/12   

 8 
 9 
A CHARTER AMENDMENT concerning 10 

Designating Emergency Preparedness and Risk Management Responsibility to the City 11 
of Annapolis Fire Department 12 

FOR the purpose of making the City Charter consistent with the City Code by designating 13 
emergency preparedness and risk management responsibility to the City of Annapolis 14 
Fire Department.  15 

BY amending the following portions of the City Charter: 16 
Article IV, Section 4. 17 

 18 

WHEREAS, the Annapolis City Council adopted O-14-12 on June 4, 2012 that authorized the 19 
Office of Emergency Preparedness and Risk Management as part of the City of 20 
Annapolis Fire Department with responsibility for emergency preparedness and 21 
risk management functions within the City of Annapolis. 22 

 23 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 24 
COUNCIL that the Charter of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 25 

ARTICLE IV - OPERATIONS 26 

Sec. 4. - Fire department.  27 

(a) The fire department shall be commanded and administered by a director who shall be 28 
known as the fire chief. The fire chief shall be appointed on the basis of his knowledge and 29 
experience in fire prevention and suppression, in emergency services, and in public safety and 30 
administration, at least three (3) years of which shall have been in an executive or supervisory 31 
capacity.  32 

(b) The fire department shall have the following powers and duties: 33 

Page 10



CA-4-12 
Page 2 

(1) To provide fire suppression and emergency services.  1 

(2) To engage in programs of fire prevention.  2 

(3) To enforce laws related to fire prevention.  3 

(4) TO BE RESPONSIBLE FOR EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RISK 4 
MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS IN THE CITY OF ANNAPOLIS. 5 

 6 
 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 7 
COUNCIL that the date of adoption of this Resolution is _____, 2012, and the amendments of 8 
the Charter of the City of Annapolis, hereby enacted shall become effective on _____, 2012, 9 
unless a proper petition for referendum hereon shall be filed as permitted by law within 40 days 10 
of adoption, provided a complete and exact copy of this Resolution shall be continuously posted 11 
on the bulletin board in the City Hall until _____, 2012, and provided further that a copy of the 12 
title of this Resolution shall be published in "The Capital", a newspaper of general circulation in 13 
the City of Annapolis, or in any other newspaper of such general circulation, once in each of the 14 
weeks on, _____, 2012, _______, 2012, _____, 2012, and _____, 2012. 15 
 16 
 SECTION III: AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 17 
COUNCIL that the Mayor is hereby specifically commanded to carry out the provisions of 18 
Section II hereof, and, as evidence of such compliance, the Mayor shall cause to be maintained 19 
appropriate certificates of publication of the newspaper or newspapers in which the title of the 20 
Resolution shall have been published and if a favorable referendum is held on the Charter 21 
change, shall declare the Charter change hereby enacted to be effective on _____, 2012, by 22 
affixing his signature hereto in the space provided on the effective date of change. 23 
 24 
 SECTION IV:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 25 
COUNCIL that as soon as the Charter Amendment hereby enacted shall become effective, 26 
either as provided herein or following a referendum, the Mayor shall send to the Maryland 27 
Department of Legislative Services a copy of this Resolution showing the number of Aldermen 28 
and Alderwomen voting for and against it and a report on the votes cast for or against the 29 
amendment hereby enacted at any referendum thereon and the date of such referendum. 30 
 31 
 The above Charter Amendment was enacted by the foregoing Resolution which was 32 
passed at a  Meeting of the Annapolis City Council on _____, 2012; _____ voting in the 33 
affirmative, ____ voting in the negative, _____ abstaining and _____ absent and the said 34 
Resolution becomes effective in accordance with law on the __ day of _____ 2012.  35 
 36 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 37 
 38 
 39 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City 
Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 40 
 41 

Page 11



CA-4-12 
Page 3 

EXPLANATION 1 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 2 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 3 
Underlining indicates amendments.  4 

Page 12



Policy Report 1 
 2 

CA-4-12  3 
 4 

Designating Emergency Preparedness and Risk Management Responsibility to 5 
the City of Annapolis Fire Department 6 

 7 
Pursuant to O-14-12, adopted June 4, 2012, that designated emergency preparedness 8 
and risk management responsibility to the Office of Emergency Preparedness and Risk 9 
Management, under the City of Annapolis Fire Department, the proposed charter 10 
amendment would make the City Charter consistent with the City Code.   11 
   12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst, Office of Law at 17 
JCCowles@annpolis.gov or (410) 263-1184. 18 
 19 

Page 13



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE 
 

Legislation No: CA-4-12   First Reader Date: 7-23-12 
Note Date:   9-14-12 

 
Legislation Title:  Charter Amendment concerning Designating Emergency 

Preparedness and Risk Management Responsibility to the 
City of Annapolis Fire Department 

 
 
Description:  For the purpose of making the City Charter consistent with the City Code 
by designating emergency preparedness and risk management responsibility to the City of 
Annapolis Fire Department. 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact: 
 
This Charter Amendment produces no significant fiscal impact. 

Page 14



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Ordinance No. O-27-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/23/12   10/19/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 7/23/12   

 8 
AN ORDINANCE concerning 9 

Removing the Requirement that a Certified Public Accountant Attest to Ratio Reports for 10 
Restaurants Renewing Their Alcoholic Beverage Licenses 11 

FOR the purpose of removing the requirement that a certified public accountant attest to the 12 
ratio reports that restaurant class alcoholic beverage licensees must provide when 13 
renewing their licenses and instead allowing the owner to provide a sworn statement 14 
regarding the ratio of food and liquor sales. 15 

BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the Code of the 16 
City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition 17 

 Section 7.12.230 18 
 19 
WHEREAS, the July 2010 report from the Citizens Committee to Review Alcoholic Beverage 20 

Laws (CCRABL) recommended that the restaurant licensee owner be allowed to 21 
provide a sworn statement that the gross receipt from food sales in the restaurant 22 
is at least equal to the required ratio, rather than requiring a certified public 23 
accountant to attest to the ratio report. 24 

 25 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 26 
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 27 

Chapter 7.12 – ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES. 28 

7.12.230 - Restaurants.  29 

A. This section applies to restaurants. 30 

B. Holders of restaurant class licenses shall keep in bound book form complete records of 31 
food purchases and food sales in their restaurants, as well as records of all purchases and 32 
sales of alcoholic beverages. They also shall preserve for a period of at least four months the 33 
original invoices or sales tickets of food and alcoholic beverages so purchased.  34 

Page 15



O-27-12 
Page 2 

C. Upon making application for renewal of a restaurant class license, the applicant shall 1 
furnish a report [from a certified public accountant] stating the ratio of the daily receipts from the 2 
sale of food to the combined daily receipts from the sale of food and from the sale of alcoholic 3 
beverages. The daily receipts shall be averaged on a quarterly basis for the calendar year 4 
preceding the year for which application for renewal of the restaurant class license is being 5 
made.  6 

D. Restaurant-class licenses are as follows: 7 

1. Class B-1: Alcoholic beverages shall be served only with meals and sales shall be 8 
only between the hours of six a.m. and twelve midnight, Monday through Saturday. The 9 
premises shall not contain a bar open to the public.  10 

2. Class B-1.X: Alcoholic beverages shall be served only with meals and sales shall be 11 
only between the hours of six a.m. and two a.m., Monday through Saturday. The premises 12 
shall not contain a bar open to the public.  13 

3. Class B-2: Alcoholic beverages shall be served only with meals and sales shall be 14 
only between the hours of six a.m. and twelve midnight, seven days a week. The premises 15 
shall not contain a bar open to the public.  16 

4. Class B-2.X: Alcoholic beverages shall be served only with meals and sales shall be 17 
only between the hours of six a.m. and two a.m., seven days a week. The premises shall 18 
not contain a bar open to the public.  19 

5. Class B-3: Alcoholic beverages are restricted to on sale only and sales shall be only 20 
between the hours of six a.m. and twelve midnight, Monday through Saturday.  21 

6. Class B-3.X: Alcoholic beverages are restricted to on sale only and sales shall be 22 
only between the hours of six a.m. and two a.m., Monday through Saturday.  23 

7. Class B-4: Alcoholic beverages are restricted to on sale only and sales shall be only 24 
between the hours of six a.m. and twelve midnight, seven days a week.  25 

8. Class B-4.X: Alcoholic beverages are restricted to on sale only and sales shall be 26 
only between the hours of six a.m. and two a.m., seven days a week.  27 

9. Class B-3.a, class B-3.X.a, class B-4.a and class B-4.X.a: In addition to the on sale of 28 
alcoholic beverages, off sale is permitted Monday through Saturday during authorized 29 
hours.  30 

10.  Class B-4.a.b and class B-4.X.a.b: In addition to the on sale of alcoholic beverages 31 
and off sale of alcoholic beverages Monday through Saturday, off sale is permitted on 32 
Sunday during authorized hours. 33 

 34 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 35 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage. 36 
 37 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 

Page 16



O-27-12 
Page 3 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 1 
 2 

EXPLANATION 3 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 4 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 5 
Underlining indicates amendments.  6 

Page 17



Policy Report 
 

O-27-12  
 

Removing the Requirement that a Certified Public Accountant Attest to Ratio 
Reports for Restaurants Renewing Their Alcoholic Beverage Licenses 

 
The proposed ordinance would enact the recommendation of the Citizens Committee to 
Review Alcoholic Beverage Laws (CCRABL) regarding the removal of the requirement 
that a certified public accountant attest to a restaurant class alcoholic beverage 
licensee’s ratio report as part of the license renewal process.  Instead, the owner would 
be allowed to submit a sworn statement regarding the ratio of food and liquor sales.  
   
 
 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst, Office of Law at 
JCCowles@annpolis.gov or (410) 263-1184. 

 
 

Page 18



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE 
 
Legislation No: O-27-12   First Reader Date:  7-23-12 
       Note Date:    9-14-12 
 
Legislation Title:  Removing the Requirement that a Certified Public Accountant 
Attest to Ratio Reports for Restaurants Renewing Their Alcoholic Beverage 
Licenses. 
 
 
Description:  
 
For the purpose of removing the requirement that a certified public accountant attest to 
the ratio reports that restaurant class alcoholic beverage licensees must provide when 
renewing their licenses and instead allowing the owner to provide a sworn statement 
regarding the ratio of food and liquor sales. 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact: 
 
This legislation produces no direct fiscal impact; however, the legislation eliminates the 
impartial third party’s independent attestation. 
 

Page 19



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Ordinance No. O-28-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 180 Day Rule 

7/23/12   1/21/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 7/23/12   

Planning Commission 7/23/12   

 8 
AN ORDINANCE concerning 9 

Amending the Procedures for the Sale and Rental of Moderately Priced Dwelling Units 10 

FOR the purpose of amending the procedures for the sale and rental of moderately priced 11 
dwelling units. 12 

BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the Code of the 13 
City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition 14 

 Section 20.30.130 15 
 16 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 17 
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 18 

CHAPTER 20.30 – MODERATELY PRICED DWELLING UNITS. 19 

20.30.130 - Procedures for sale and rental of MPDUs.  20 

[A. Procedures for Sale or Rental of MPDUs.] 21 

[1]A. Every MPDU required under this chapter [must] SHALL be [rented or] sold OR RENTED to 22 
eligible persons to be used for his or her OR THEIR own residence. 23 

[2]B. Before offering any MPDUs for sale or rent, the applicant [must] SHALL notify the 24 
Department of Planning and Zoning of the proposed offering and the date on which the 25 
applicant will be ready to begin marketing to eligible persons. The notice [must] SHALL include:  26 

1.   THE ADDRESS OF EACH MPDU OFFERED FOR SALE OR RENT; [a. Whether the units 27 
will be sold or rented;] 28 

2.   IDENTIFICATION OF WHICH MPDUS SHALL BE SOLD AND WHICH SHALL BE 29 
OFFERED FOR RENT;  30 

Page 20



O-28-12 
Page 2 

[b. The number of units offered;] 1 

[c]3. The number of bedrooms IN EACH MPDU OFFERED; 2 

[d]4. The floor area for each [unit type] MPDU; 3 

[e]5. A description of the amenities [offered] in each MPDU; [unit and a statement of the 4 
availability of each unit for sale or rent;] 5 

[f]6. A vicinity map of the offering; and 6 

[g]7. Other information or documents as the Department of Planning and Zoning finds 7 
necessary [to determine] FOR compliance with this chapter. [This notice by the Department of 8 
Planning and Zoning shall be issued within thirty days of the date from which the applicant first 9 
submitted its notice to commence marketing.]  10 

[3]C. The Department of Planning and Zoning [will] SHALL maintain a list of eligible persons and 11 
[must] SHALL SEND WRITTEN NOTICE TO [notify] eligible persons OF AN MPDU OFFERING 12 
[by mail and by newspaper] prior to the start of the marketing period. THE NOTICE SHALL 13 
INCLUDE A STATEMENT INDICATING THAT IF NO ELIGIBLE PERSON RESPONDS IN 14 
WRITING TO THE NOTICE WITHIN FIFTEEN (15) BUSINESS DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF 15 
THE NOTICE, OR IF ELIGIBLE PERSONS DO RESPOND WITHIN FIFTEEN (15) BUSINESS 16 
DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF THE NOTICE BUT DO NOT QUALIFY FOR FINANCING OR  17 
CANNOT PURCHASE THE MPDU FOR ANY OTHER REASON, OR IF NO ELIGIBLE 18 
PERSON HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT OF SALE FOR THE MPDU WITHIN NINETY 19 
(90) DAYS AFTER THE START OF THE MARKETING PERIOD, THE CITY MAY PURCHASE 20 
THE MPDU AT THE PURCHASE PRICE ESTABLISHED FOR THE MPDU, BUT THAT IF THE 21 
CITY DOES NOT OPT TO PURCHASE THE MPDU, THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND 22 
ZONING INTENDS TO ISSUE A WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE APPLICANT AUTHORIZING 23 
THE APPLICANT TO OFFER THE MPDU TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC FOR SALE.  THE 24 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND ZONING SHALL NOT BE REQUIRED TO ISSUE ANY 25 
FURTHER NOTICE TO ELIGIBLE PERSONS BEFORE AUTHORIZING THE APPLICANT TO 26 
OFFER THE MPDU FOR SALE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC. 27 

[4]D. An applicant [must] SHALL not sell or rent any [unit] MPDU to aN ELIGIBLE [qualified] 28 
person as defined in this chapter] until such person has obtained a certificate of eligibility issued 29 
by the Department of Planning and Zoning. [from the buyer or lessee. A copy of each certificate 30 
must be maintained on file by the Department of Planning and Zoning.]  31 

[5]E. IF NO ELIGIBLE PERSON HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT OF SALE FOR ANY 32 
MPDU OFFERED FOR SALE WITHIN ninety (90) days after the start of a marketing period, 33 
THE CITY [Department of Planning and Zoning] may purchase THE MPDU AT THE 34 
PURCHASE PRICE ESTABLISHED FOR THE MPDU [a for sale MPDU if no eligible person 35 
has entered into a purchase agreement or contracted to buy that MPDU]. IF THE CITY 36 
PURCHASES AN MPDU UNDER THESE CIRCUMSTANCES, THE STATUS OF THE MPDU 37 
AS A FOR SALE MPDU SHALL NOT CHANGE.  THE CITY [The Department of Planning and 38 
Zoning] shall only [rent or] sell the CITY OWNED MPDU to an eligible person AND THE CITY 39 
OWNED MPDU SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THIS CHAPTER.    40 

F.  IF THE CITY OPTS NOT TO PURCHASE AN MPDU FOR WHICH NO ELIGIBLE PERSON 41 
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT OF SALE WITHIN THE NINETY (90) 42 
DAY MARKETING PERIOD TO ELIGIBLE PERSONS, THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 43 
AND ZONING SHALL PROVIDE WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE APPLICANT CONTAINING AN 44 

Page 21



O-28-12 
Page 3 

AUTHORIZATION TO MARKET THE MPDU TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC FOR SALE AT THE 1 
APPROVED PURCHASE PRICE. THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND ZONING SHALL 2 
NOT ISSUE AN AUTHORIZATION TO MARKET TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC UNLESS ALL 3 
REQUIREMENTS OF THIS CHAPTER HAVE BEEN SATISFIED. THE STATUS OF AN MPDU 4 
FOR SALE SHALL NOT CHANGE AS A RESULT OF AN OFFERING TO THE GENERAL 5 
PUBLIC, AND ALL MPDUS THAT ARE SOLD TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC SHALL BE 6 
SUBJECT TO MPDU INCOME REQUIREMENTS AND SHALL BE OFFERED TO RESIDENTS 7 
OF ANNE ARUNDEL COUNTY.   8 

[6]G. The deposit required with the sales contract for the purchase of an MPDU shall not exceed 9 
one thousand dollars. 10 

[7]H. Every buyer or renter of an MPDU, INCLUDING THOSE MPDUS BOUGHT OR LEASED 11 
BY MEMBERS OF THE GENERAL PUBLIC UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THIS CHAPTER, 12 
[must] SHALL occupy the [unit] MPDU as his or her OR THEIR primary residence during the 13 
[control] OCCUPANCY period. [Each] EVERY buyer and renter [must] SHALL certify before 14 
taking occupancy that he or she OR THEY SHALL [will] occupy the [unit] MPDU as his or her 15 
primary residence during [the] ANY occupancy period. The Director of Planning and Zoning may 16 
require an MPDU owner who does not occupy the [unit] MPDU as [his or her] A primary 17 
residence to offer the unit for resale [to an eligible person] under the [resale] provisions of THIS 18 
CHAPTER [Section 20.30.140] OR MAY REQUIRE A RENTER WHO IS NOT AN ELIGIBLE 19 
PERSON TO VACATE. [Every MPDU required under this chapter must be offered to the 20 
general public for sale or rental to a good-faith purchaser or renter to be used for his or her own 21 
primary residence, except units offered for sale or rent to a non-profit corporation, whose 22 
purpose is to provide housing for persons of moderate income.]  23 

[8]I. An owner of an MPDU [may] SHALL not rent the [unit] MPDU unless the renter is an 24 
eligible person, and the rental is approved in writing by the Department of Planning and Zoning 25 
annually.  ALL ANNUAL RENTAL RENEWALS SHALL BE GOVERNED BY TITLE 17 OF THE 26 
ANNAPOLIS CITY CODE.    27 

[9]J. ANY MPDU OWNER WHO RENTS AN MPDU TO AN INELIGIBLE PERSON [Any rent 28 
obtained for a MPDU that is rented to an ineligible person must] SHALL [be paid] PAY ALL 29 
SUCH RENT into the CITY’S Homeownership Assistance Trust Fund [by the owner within 30 
ninety] THIRTY (30) days after the Department of Planning and Zoning notifies the owner of the 31 
rental violation. THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND ZONING MAY ASSESS THE 32 
OWNER [Any amount unpaid after ninety days is grounds for the Department of Planning and 33 
Zoning to assess] a monthly fee that is equal to the HUD fair market rent for the MPDU[."] FOR 34 
EACH MONTH THAT RENT WAS CHARGED AND RECEIVED IN VIOLATION OF THIS 35 
CHAPTER.   36 
 37 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 38 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage. 39 
 40 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 41 
 42 
 43 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Page 22



O-28-12 
Page 4 

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 1 
 2 

EXPLANATION 3 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 4 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 5 
Underlining indicates amendments.  6 

Page 23



Policy Report 1 
 2 

O-28-12  3 
 4 

Amending the Procedures for the Sale and Rental  5 
of Moderately Priced Dwelling Units 6 

 7 

The proposed ordinance would amend the procedures for the sale and rental of 8 
moderately priced dwelling units (MPDU).  Specifically, if the City opts not to purchase 9 
an MPDU for which no eligible person has entered into a contract of sale within the 90 10 
day marketing period to eligible persons, the Department of Planning and Zoning shall 11 
provide written notice to the applicant containing an authorization to market the MPDU 12 
to the general public for sale at the approved purchase price. The Department of 13 
Planning and Zoning shall not issue an authorization to market to the general public 14 
unless all requirements of Chapter 20.30 of the City Code have been satisfied. The 15 
status of an MPDU for sale shall not change as a result of an offering to the general 16 
public and all MPDUs that are sold to the general public shall be subject to MPDU 17 
income requirements and shall be offered to residents of Anne Arundel County.   18 
 19 
Any MPDU owner who rents an MPDU to an ineligible person shall pay all such rent into 20 
the City’s Homeownership Assistance Trust Fund 30 days after the Department of 21 
Planning and Zoning notifies the owner of the rental violation. The Department of 22 
Planning and Zoning may assess the owner a monthly fee that is equal to the HUD fair 23 
market rent for the MPDU for each month that rent was charged and received in 24 
violation of this chapter.   25 
 26 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst, Office of Law at 27 
JCCowles@annpolis.gov or (410) 263-1184. 28 

 29 

Page 24



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE   
 

Legislation No: O-28-12   First Reader Date: 7-23-12 
Note Date:    9-14-12 

 
Legislation Title:  Amending the Procedures for the Sale and Rental of 
Moderately Priced Dwelling Units 

 
 

Description:  For the purpose of amending the procedures for the sale and rental of 
moderately priced dwelling units. 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact:   
 
This legislation produces no significant fiscal impact. 

Page 25



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Ordinance No. O-16-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

4/23/12   7/27/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Public Safety 4/23/12   

 8 
AN ORDINANCE concerning 9 

Distribution of Unsolicited Materials 10 

FOR the purpose of establishing Section 11.36.025 of the Code of the City of Annapolis 11 
regarding the distribution of unsolicited materials. 12 

BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the Code of the 13 
City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition 14 

 Section 11.36.010 15 
  16 
BY adding to the following portions of the Code of the City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition 17 
 Section 11.36.025 18 
 19 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 20 
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 21 

CHAPTER 11.36 – OFFENSES AGAINST PROPERTY. 22 

11.36.010 - Advertising—Distribution in streets.  23 
No person shall distribute, or cause to be distributed, any pamphlets, dodgers, papers or other 24 
advertising matter upon or about the streets or alleys, or fasten, or cause to be fastened, the 25 
advertising matter to poles, or place, or cause them to be placed in or on automobiles. [This 26 
section does not restrict the distribution of advertising matter from house to house; provided, 27 
that it is so distributed that it will not be blown or cast into the street.]  28 
 29 

11.36.025 – LITTERING – UNSOLICITED MATERIALS. 30 
NO PERSON SHALL DISTRIBUTE, OR CAUSE TO BE DISTRIBUTED, ANY UNSOLICITED 31 
MATERIALS UPON OR ABOUT THE STREETS, ALLEYS, RESIDENTIAL OR COMMERCIAL 32 
PROPERTY, OR PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY.  THIS SECTION DOES NOT RESTRICT THE 33 
DISTRIBUTION OF UNSOLICITED MATERIALS (A) DELIVERED THROUGH THE U.S. 34 
POSTAL SERVICE, (B) DEPOSITED ON RESIDENTIAL OR COMMERCIAL DOOR STEPS, 35 
PORCHES, STOOPS OR (C) SECURED OR FASTENED THROUGH THE USE OF A DOOR 36 

Page 26



O-16-12 
Page 2 

HANGER SO THAT THE MATERIALS WILL NOT BE BLOWN OR CAST INTO THE STREETS, 1 
ALLEYS, RESIDENTIAL OR COMMERCIAL PROPERTY, OR PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY. 2 
 3 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 4 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage. 5 
 6 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 7 
 8 
 9 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 10 
 11 

EXPLANATION 12 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 13 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 14 
Underlining indicates amendments.  15 

 16 

Page 27



Policy Report 
 

O-16-12 
 

Distribution of Unsolicited Materials 

 
The proposed ordinance would prohibit the distribution of unsolicited materials upon or 
about the streets, alleys, residential or commercial property, or public rights of way.  The 
proposed ordinance would not restrict the distribution of unsolicited materials (a) 
delivered through the U.S. Postal Service, (b) deposited on residential or commercial 
door steps, porches, stoops or (c) secured or fastened through the use of a door hanger 
so that the materials will not be blown or cast into the streets, alleys, residential or 
commercial property, or public rights of way. 
 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  

 

Page 28



Amendment to O-16-12 
Distribution of Unsolicited Materials 

 
 
Amendment #1 – in the nature of a substitution: 
Strike from Page 1, Line 31 through Page 2, Line 2: 
[NO PERSON SHALL DISTRIBUTE, OR CAUSE TO BE DISTRIBUTED, ANY 
UNSOLICITED MATERIALS UPON OR ABOUT THE STREETS, ALLEYS, 
RESIDENTIAL OR COMMERCIAL PROPERTY, OR PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY.  
THIS SECTION DOES NOT RESTRICT THE DISTRIBUTION OF 
UNSOLICITED MATERIALS (A) DELIVERED THROUGH THE U.S. POSTAL 
SERVICE, (B) DEPOSITED ON RESIDENTIAL OR COMMERCIAL DOOR 
STEPS, PORCHES, STOOPS OR (C) SECURED OR FASTENED THROUGH 
THE USE OF A DOOR HANGER SO THAT THE MATERIALS WILL NOT BE 
BLOWN OR CAST INTO THE STREETS, ALLEYS, RESIDENTIAL OR 
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY, OR PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY.] 
 
Insert on Page 1, Line 31: 
UNSOLICITED MATERIALS MAY BE DISTRIBUTED TO RESIDENTIAL OR 
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY ONLY IF SUCH UNSOLICITED MATERIALS ARE: 
(A) DELIVERED THROUGH THE U.S. POSTAL SERVICE, (B) DEPOSITED ON 
DOOR STEPS, PORCHES, OR STOOPS PROVIDED THAT THE MATERIALS 
WILL NOT BE BLOWN OR CAST INTO STREETS, ALLEYS, RESIDENTIAL OR 
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY, OR PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY OR (C) SECURED 
OR FASTENED TO A DOOR, HANDLE, OR ENTRANCE GATE. 
 
 
Amendment #2 
Page 2, Line 3: insert “A PERSON WHO VIOLATES THIS SECTION IS GUILTY 
OF A MUNICIPAL INFRACTION AND IS SUBJECT TO A FINE AS 
ESTABLISHED BY RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL.” 
 

Page 29



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE   
 

Legislation No: O-16-12   First Reader Date: 4-23-12 
Note Date:    5-4-12 

 
Legislation Title:  Distribution of Unsolicited Materials 

 
 

Description:  For the purpose of establishing Section 11.36.025 of the Code of the City of 
Annapolis regarding the distribution of unsolicited materials. 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact:   
 
This legislation produces no significant fiscal impact. 

Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-34-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12   10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 7/9/12   

Public Safety 7/9/12   

 8 
 9 
A RESOLUTION concerning 10 

Establishing a Fine for Violations of Distributing Unsolicited Materials 11 

FOR the purpose of establishing a fine for violations of distributing unsolicited materials. 12 

 13 

WHEREAS, proposed ordinance O-16-12 amends the Code of the City of Annapolis by 14 
regulating litter caused by the distribution of unsolicited materials; and 15 

 16 
WHEREAS, O-16-12 authorizes the City Council to establish a fine for violating the ordinance.  17 
 18 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that that the 19 
Fines Schedule is hereby amended as follows: 20 

 21 

Section in 
Code 

 
Section Name 

 
Fine for Initial Offense

Fine for Repeat or 
Continuous Violations

11.36.025 LITTERING – 
UNSOLICITED 
MATERIALS 

$250 PER VIOLATION 
PER DAY. 

$250 PER VIOLATION 
PER DAY. 

 22 
 23 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this resolution 24 
shall take effect on the date of adoption. 25 
 26 
 27 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 28 
 29 
 30 

Page 34



R-34-12 
Page 2 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 1 
 2 

EXPLANATION 3 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 4 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 5 
Underlining indicates amendments.  6 

Page 35



R-34-12 
Page 3 

Policy Report 1 
 2 

R-34-12 3 
 4 

 5 
Establishing a Fine for Violations of Distributing Unsolicited Materials 6 

The proposed resolution would establish a fine for violations of distributing unsolicited 7 
materials.  Proposed ordinance O-16-12 amends the Code of the City of Annapolis by 8 
regulating litter caused by the distribution of unsolicited materials and O-16-12 9 
authorizes the City Council to establish a fine for violating the ordinance.  10 

 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 15 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  16 

 17 

Page 36



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE 
 
Legislation No: R-34-12   First Reader Date:  7-9-12 
       Note Date:    7-17-12 
 
Legislation Title:  Establishing a Fine for Violations of Distributing Unsolicited 
Materials 
 
Description:  
 
For the purpose of establishing a fine for violations of distributing unsolicited materials. 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact: 
 
This legislation provides for a fine of $250 per violation per day for the initial offense and 
$250 per violation per day for repeat or continuous violations of proposed O-16-12 which 
prohibits the distribution of unsolicited materials.  The positive fiscal impact will depend on 
the number of violations. 

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-41-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen, Alderman Pfeiffer, Alderwoman Finlayson, Alderman 6 
Paone, Alderman Kirby, Alderwoman Hoyle, and Alderman Israel 7 

 8 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/10/12   12/7/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Public Safety 9/10/12   

 9 
A RESOLUTION concerning 10 

Phelps Lane 11 

FOR the purpose of declaring that Middle Way shall be renamed “Phelps Lane” to honor the 12 
contributions of the Phelps Family to the City of Annapolis. 13 

WHEREAS, George Phelps, Jr. was part of what has become known as “the Greatest 14 
Generation” who won the peace during World War II; and 15 

16 
WHEREAS, George Phelps, Jr. returned to his native Annapolis after the War and became 17 

the first sworn African American law enforcement officer in Anne Arundel 18 
County, appointed by then Anne Arundel County Sheriff Joseph Alton; and   19 

20 
WHEREAS, Mr. Phelps mustered and trained a force of about 200 special deputy sheriffs – 21 

all of them African American – starting in 1952 that maintained order for years 22 
during concerts at Carr's Beach Club, the segregated beach in Eastport where 23 
African Americans by the thousands from Baltimore and Washington would 24 
converge in summers for performances by such stars as James Brown and 25 
Jackie Wilson; and 26 

 27 
WHEREAS, George Phelps, Jr., because of his renowned expertise in crowd control and 28 

surveillance was asked to and did provide technical assistance and material 29 
support for the security contingent at the historic 1963 March on Washington 30 
led by the late Reverend Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.; and 31 

32 
WHEREAS, George and his wife Marian gave the money to establish the Opportunities 33 

Industrialization Center (OIC) in Annapolis, the longest running established job 34 
training and instruction in life skills program that helps place Annapolitans with 35 
few skills and prospects into jobs; and 36 

37 
WHEREAS, George Phelps, Jr. has been a mentor and friend to countless politicians from 38 

all stripes who welcome and actively seek his help and advice on how to make 39 

Page 40



R-41-12 
Page 2 

Annapolis and Anne Arundel County a better place to live, work and raise a 1 
family; and 2 

 3 
WHEREAS, George Phelps, by his words and actions has demonstrated that he is a true 4 

living legend and someone that Annapolitans have come to admire as part of 5 
“living history”; 6 

 7 
WHEREAS, the renaming of Middle Way to “Phelps Lane” is a fitting honor for these 8 

accomplishments; 9 
 10 
WHEREAS,  the renaming of this street does not conflict with any other City street names 11 

nor Anne Arundel County street names in the Annapolis area. 12 
 13 
 14 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that Middle 15 
Way shall be renamed “Phelps Lane” in honor of the Phelps family. 16 
 17 
AND BT IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that all  18 
“Phelps Lane” street signage shall bear the former designation of Middle Way, as is the custom 19 
on other street signs in the City of Annapolis. 20 
 21 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that a copy of this 22 
resolution shall be provided to the Phelps family. 23 
 24 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 25 
 26 
 27 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 

EXPLANATION 33 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 34 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 35 
Underlining indicates amendments.  36 

 37 

Page 41



 
Policy Report 

 
R-41-12 

 
Phelps Lane 

 
The proposed resolution would rename Middle Way to Phelps Lane to honor the Phelps 
family’s contributions to the City of Annapolis. 

 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  

 

Page 42



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE 
 
Legislation No: R-41-12   First Reader Date:  9-10-12 
       Note Date:    9-14-12 
 
Legislation Title:  Phelps Lane 
 
 
Description:  
 
For the purpose of declaring that Middle Way shall be renamed “Phelps Lane” to honor the 
contributions of the Phelps Family to the City of Annapolis. 
 
 Analysis of Fiscal Impact: 
 
Other than the cost of signage, this legislation produces no significant fiscal impact. 

Page 43



Page 44



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 
Charter Amendment No. CA-1-12 4 

 5 
Introduced by: Alderman Pfeiffer at the Request of the Charter Revision Commission 6 

 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 9/24/12   

 8 
 9 
A CHARTER AMENDMENT concerning 10 

Non-Partisan Elections 11 

FOR the purpose of amending the Charter of the City of Annapolis to provide for non-partisan 12 
elections for the offices of Mayor and Aldermen and Alderwomen; filling vacancies in 13 
these offices; and removing partisan consideration in the composition and membership 14 
of the Board of Supervisors of Elections. 15 

BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the City Charter: 16 
Article II, Section 5 17 
Article II, Section 6 18 
Article II, Section 7 19 

 20 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 21 
COUNCIL that the Charter of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 22 

 23 
Sec. 5. - Primary election dates; municipal election dates; term dates.  24 
Nomination for a mayor [and] SHALL BE MADE BY FILING WITH THE BOARD OF 25 
SUPERVISORS OF ELECTION A CERTIFICATE EXECUTED BY NO FEWER THAT TWO-26 
HUNDRED FIFTY QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY, WITH NOT LESS THAN THIRTY 27 
SIGNATURES BEING THOSE OF REGISTERED VOTERS FROM EACH OF THE CITY’S 28 
WARDS. NOMINATION for one (1) alderman from each ward in the city shall be made by 29 
[direct vote of the respective political parties at] FILING WITH THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 30 
OF ELECTION A CERTIFICATE EXECUTED BY NO FEWER THAN FIFTY QUALIFIED 31 
VOTERS THAT ARE RESIDENTS OF THAT WARD.  ALL CITY ELECTIONS SHALL BE NON-32 
PARTISAN AND NO INDICATION OF PARTY AFFILIATION SHALL BE PLACED BESIDE THE 33 
CANDIDATES’ NAMES ON ANY BALLOT.  34 
 35 
P[p]rimary elections [to] SHALL be held in the city for the several candidates for mayor and, in 36 
each ward of the city, for the several candidates for aldermen, on the third Tuesday of 37 

Page 45



CA-1-12 
Page 2 

September in each year in which municipal elections in the city are to be held. Municipal 1 
elections shall be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November in every fourth 2 
year, beginning with the year 1985. However, in the event an election will occur on the same 3 
day as the public observance of a religious holiday, or in case of severe weather, the board of 4 
supervisors of elections shall have the authority to reschedule the election to a day within one 5 
week of the day prescribed by this section. The mayor and aldermen elected at each municipal 6 
election shall qualify in the manner prescribed by Article II, Section 3 of this Charter, and shall 7 
take office on the first Monday in December of the year in which they are elected and shall hold 8 
office until the first Monday in December in the fourth year following, or until their successors 9 
are elected and qualify.  10 

 11 

Sec. 6. - Board of supervisors of elections.  12 
(a) There is a board of supervisors of elections of the City of Annapolis, consisting of three (3) 13 
residents in and voters of the city[, two (2) of whom shall always be selected from the leading 14 
political parties of the state, one (1) from each of such parties. The third member may be 15 
selected from either of the leading political parties of the state or from any other political party.] 16 
The members shall be persons of approved integrity and capacity, and may not hold elective 17 
office, nor be candidates for elective office during their terms of office. Members shall serve 18 
without compensation.  19 

(b) Members of the Board of Supervisors of Elections shall be appointed by the City Council 20 
for a term that begins on the second Monday of March following the General City Election in the 21 
preceding November and ends four years later on the second Monday in March. In the event of 22 
a vacancy, the City Council shall immediately fill the vacancy only for the remainder of the four 23 
year term. A member must be reappointed for a new term in order to serve beyond any four 24 
year term. A chair of the Board of Supervisors of Elections shall be chosen annually by its 25 
members.  26 

[(c) Before appointing any supervisors of election, the city council shall request the city central 27 
committees representing the two (2) leading political parties of the state in the city each to 28 
designate at least four (4) eligible candidates for the position to be filled, by the second Monday 29 
in March. If a city central committee fails to nominate the required number of candidates as 30 
provided herein, the mayor shall submit a list of nominees to the city council in addition to the 31 
central committee's list by the first Monday in April. The city council shall appoint the supervisors 32 
by the second Monday in April.]  33 

 34 

Sec. 7. - Vacancies.  35 
(a) The following procedure for the filling of vacancies shall apply whenever a vacancy shall 36 
occur with less than fifteen months remaining until the next general election at which members 37 
of the city council shall be elected.  38 

(1) In case of the death, resignation, refusal to serve, disqualification of the mayor or of any 39 
alderman, or removal out of the city by the mayor, or out of the ward, by any alderman, the 40 
mayor or acting mayor shall give written notice of the vacancy, within five (5) business 41 
days, to the [chairman of the city central committee of the political party to which the 42 
person vacating was registered with the board of supervisors of elections at the time of 43 
election] ALDERMEN AND ALDERWOMEN.  44 

(2) Not more than five (5) business days after being notified by the mayor or acting mayor, 45 
the [central committee] ALDERMEN AND ALDERWOMEN shall announce the time and 46 

Page 46



CA-1-12 
Page 3 

place of a public hearing to be held for the purpose of selecting candidates to fill the 1 
vacancy. [Such] THE announcement shall consist of, but not be limited to, a prominent 2 
notice in a local daily newspaper. The hearing shall be held not less than ten (10) business 3 
days, nor more than fifteen (15) business days, from the date the announcement first 4 
appears in the newspaper.  5 

(3) [Not less than five (5) business days before the hearing date, the central committee 6 
shall announce the qualified candidates of its political affiliation to be considered at the 7 
hearing. If any otherwise qualified person is not selected by the central committee, that] 8 
ANY QUALIFIED person shall be considered at the hearing upon presentation of a petition, 9 
in the case of a vacancy in the office of alderman, signed by at least fifty (50) registered 10 
voters [of the appropriate political party] who live in the affected ward. If the vacancy is in 11 
the office of mayor, the petition shall bear the signatures of at least two hundred fifty (250) 12 
registered voters [of the appropriate political party], with not less than thirty (30) signatures 13 
being those of registered voters from each of the city's wards.  14 

(4) At the hearing, each qualified candidate shall have an opportunity to address the 15 
[central committee] MAYOR AND ALDERMEN AND ALDERWOMEN. [After all candidates 16 
have been heard, the central committee shall select one (1) candidate and the chairman of 17 
the committee shall notify the mayor or acting mayor, in writing, of the choice, not more 18 
than three (3) business days after the hearing.]  19 

(5) At the next regularly scheduled meeting of the city council, or at a special session 20 
convened before then by the mayor or acting mayor for the purpose of filling the vacancy, 21 
THE MAYOR AND ALDERMEN AND ALDERWOMEN SHALL SELECT ONE OF THE 22 
CANDIDATES TO FILL THE VACANCY AND the selected candidate shall be sworn in and 23 
seated immediately.  24 

[(6) If the person vacating office was not registered in a political party at the time of 25 
election, the city council shall follow as closely as possible the candidate selection and 26 
election procedure above prescribed for a central committee to follow, but without regard to 27 
the political affiliation of any candidate.]  28 

(b) The following procedure for the filling of vacancies shall apply whenever a vacancy shall 29 
occur with fifteen months or more remaining until the next general election at which members of 30 
the city council shall be elected.  31 

(1) In case of the death, resignation, refusal to serve, disqualification of the mayor or of any 32 
alderman, or removal out of the city by the mayor, or out of the ward by any alderman, the 33 
mayor or acting mayor shall issue a proclamation directing that a special primary election 34 
and a special general election be held to fill the vacancy. The mayor or acting mayor shall 35 
issue this proclamation within five (5) days after the vacancy occurs.  36 

(2) The proclamation shall specify the date for the special primary election and special 37 
general election, provided that the special primary election shall be held on any weekday 38 
other than a state or religious holiday which is at least twenty-three (23) days but no longer 39 
than thirty (30) days from the date of the proclamation and that the special general election 40 
shall be held on any weekday other than a state or religious holiday which is at least 41 
twenty-one (21) days but not longer than thirty days from the date of the special primary 42 
election.  43 

(3) Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, and except where such construction 44 

Page 47



CA-1-12 
Page 4 

would be unreasonable, the provisions of this Charter and of Title 4 of the Code of the City 1 
of Annapolis shall be applicable to the special elections provided for herein and the city 2 
shall annually budget an amount for that purpose.  3 

(4) Certificates of candidacy shall be filed with the office of the board of supervisors of 4 
elections not later than 9:00 p.m. on the Monday which is three (3) weeks before the day 5 
on which the special primary election is scheduled to be conducted. If the filing date occurs 6 
on a legal holiday, the certificates shall be filed not later than 9:00 p.m. on the next regular 7 
business day which is not a legal holiday.  8 

(5) The candidate who has been declared elected by the board of supervisors of elections 9 
shall be sworn in and seated at the next regular or special meeting of the city council 10 
following the special general election.  11 

 12 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 13 
COUNCIL that the date of adoption of this Resolution is _____, 2012, and the amendments of 14 
the Charter of the City of Annapolis, hereby enacted shall become effective on _____, 2012, 15 
unless a proper petition for referendum hereon shall be filed as permitted by law within 40 days 16 
of adoption, provided a complete and exact copy of this Resolution shall be continuously posted 17 
on the bulletin board in the City Hall until _____, 2012, and provided further that a copy of the 18 
title of this Resolution shall be published in "The Capital", a newspaper of general circulation in 19 
the City of Annapolis, or in any other newspaper of such general circulation, once in each of the 20 
weeks on, _____, 2012, _______, 2012, _____, 2012, and _____, 2012. 21 
 22 
 SECTION III: AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 23 
COUNCIL that the Mayor is hereby specifically commanded to carry out the provisions of 24 
Section II hereof, and, as evidence of such compliance, the Mayor shall cause to be maintained 25 
appropriate certificates of publication of the newspaper or newspapers in which the title of the 26 
Resolution shall have been published and if a favorable referendum is held on the Charter 27 
change, shall declare the Charter change hereby enacted to be effective on _____, 2012, by 28 
affixing his signature hereto in the space provided on the effective date of change. 29 
 30 
 SECTION IV:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 31 
COUNCIL that as soon as the Charter Amendment hereby enacted shall become effective, 32 
either as provided herein or following a referendum, the Mayor shall send to the Maryland 33 
Department of Legislative Services a copy of this Resolution showing the number of Aldermen 34 
and Alderwomen voting for and against it and a report on the votes cast for or against the 35 
amendment hereby enacted at any referendum thereon and the date of such referendum. 36 
 37 
 The above Charter Amendment was enacted by the foregoing Resolution which was 38 
passed at a  Meeting of the Annapolis City Council on _____, 2012; _____ voting in the 39 
affirmative, ____ voting in the negative, _____ abstaining and _____ absent and the said 40 
Resolution becomes effective in accordance with law on the __ day of _____ 2012.  41 
 42 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 
 47 
 48 

Page 48



CA-1-12 
Page 5 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 1 
 2 

EXPLANATION 3 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 4 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 5 
Underlining indicates amendments.  6 

Page 49



Policy Report 1 
 2 

CA-1-12  3 
 4 

Non-Partisan Elections 5 

 6 
The proposed charter amendment would render elections in the City of Annapolis as 7 
non-partisan, meaning no affiliation with a political party.  The proposed charter 8 
amendment is based on the recent report from the 2011 Annapolis Charter Revision 9 
Commission, although their report notes this, too, was a recommendation from the 1996 10 
and 2002 Charter Revision Commissions: 11 
 12 

“Political parties, which play a distinctive role nationally and in state governments, 13 
and have grown exceedingly polarized, have very little, if any, relevance to the 14 
management and governing of local municipalities like Annapolis.  Most cities in 15 
Maryland, excluding only Frederick, Baltimore and Annapolis, now have non-16 
partisan elections.”   17 

 18 
The proposed charter amendment would remove political affiliation for nominations for 19 
the office of Mayor and Aldermen and Alderwomen and for filling vacancies in these 20 
offices.  Additionally, the proposed charter amendment would remove partisan 21 
considerations in the composition and membership of the Board of Supervisors of 22 
Elections. 23 
   24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst, Office of Law at 29 
JCCowles@annpolis.gov or (410) 263-1184. 30 
 31 

Page 50



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 
Charter Amendment No. CA-2-12 4 

 5 
Introduced by: Alderman Pfeiffer at the Request of the Charter Revision Commission 6 

 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 9/24/12   

 8 
 9 
A CHARTER AMENDMENT concerning 10 

Municipal Elections Coinciding with State of Maryland Elections in 2018 and Onward 11 

FOR the purpose of amending the Charter of the City of Annapolis to establish the dates of 12 
the primary and general elections to coincide with the State of Maryland in 2018 and 13 
extending the length of time in office for the incoming City Council in December 2013 an 14 
additional year to December 2018 in order to facilitate this transition period. 15 

BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the City Charter: 16 
Article II, Section 2 17 
Article II, Section 5 18 

 19 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 20 
COUNCIL that the Charter of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 21 

Sec. 2. - General election dates.  22 
The citizens and residents of the City of Annapolis qualified to vote for members of the General 23 
Assembly of Maryland, and otherwise qualified by the registration and election laws for such 24 
cases made and provided, shall elect by ballot, every four (4) years, beginning in [1985] 2018, 25 
on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November OR AS MAY BE DETERMINED BY 26 
THE STATE OF MARYLAND BOARD OF ELECTIONS, a mayor; and the qualified voters, in 27 
each ward shall at the same time elect by ballot one (1) resident of the ward as alderman.  28 
 29 

Sec. 5. - Primary election dates; municipal election dates; term dates.  30 
Nomination for a mayor and for one (1) alderman from each ward in the city shall be made by 31 
direct vote of the respective political parties at primary elections to be held in the city for the 32 
several candidates for mayor and, in each ward of the city, for the several candidates for 33 
aldermen, on the third Tuesday of September in each year in which municipal elections in the 34 
city are to be held OR AS MAY BE DETERMINED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND BOARD 35 
OF ELECTIONS. Municipal elections shall be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in 36 
November in every fourth year, beginning with the year [1985] 2018 OR AS MAY BE 37 

Page 51



CA-2-12 
Page 2 

DETERMINED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND BOARD OF ELECTIONS. However, in the 1 
event an election will occur on the same day as the public observance of a religious holiday, or 2 
in case of severe weather, the board of supervisors of elections shall have the authority to 3 
reschedule the election to a day within one week of the day prescribed by this section OR AS 4 
MAY BE DETERMINED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND BOARD OF ELECTIONS. The mayor 5 
and aldermen elected at each municipal election shall qualify in the manner prescribed by 6 
Article II, Section 3 of this Charter, and shall take office on the first Monday in December of the 7 
year in which they are elected and shall hold office until the first Monday in December in the 8 
fourth year following, or until their successors are elected and qualify.  IN ORDER FOR 9 
MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS TO COINCIDE WITH STATE OF MARYLAND ELECTIONS, THE 10 
CITY COUNCIL TERM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL BEGINNING ON THE FIRST MONDAY OF 11 
DECEMBER 2013 WILL EXTEND AN ADDITIONAL YEAR TO THE FIRST MONDAY OF 12 
DECEMBER 2018. 13 

 14 
 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 15 
COUNCIL that the date of adoption of this Resolution is _____, 2012, and the amendments of 16 
the Charter of the City of Annapolis, hereby enacted shall become effective on _____, 2012, 17 
unless a proper petition for referendum hereon shall be filed as permitted by law within 40 days 18 
of adoption, provided a complete and exact copy of this Resolution shall be continuously posted 19 
on the bulletin board in the City Hall until _____, 2012, and provided further that a copy of the 20 
title of this Resolution shall be published in "The Capital", a newspaper of general circulation in 21 
the City of Annapolis, or in any other newspaper of such general circulation, once in each of the 22 
weeks on, _____, 2012, _______, 2012, _____, 2012, and _____, 2012. 23 
 24 
 SECTION III: AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 25 
COUNCIL that the Mayor is hereby specifically commanded to carry out the provisions of 26 
Section II hereof, and, as evidence of such compliance, the Mayor shall cause to be maintained 27 
appropriate certificates of publication of the newspaper or newspapers in which the title of the 28 
Resolution shall have been published and if a favorable referendum is held on the Charter 29 
change, shall declare the Charter change hereby enacted to be effective on _____, 2012, by 30 
affixing his signature hereto in the space provided on the effective date of change. 31 
 32 
 SECTION IV:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 33 
COUNCIL that as soon as the Charter Amendment hereby enacted shall become effective, 34 
either as provided herein or following a referendum, the Mayor shall send to the Maryland 35 
Department of Legislative Services a copy of this Resolution showing the number of Aldermen 36 
and Alderwomen voting for and against it and a report on the votes cast for or against the 37 
amendment hereby enacted at any referendum thereon and the date of such referendum. 38 
 39 
 The above Charter Amendment was enacted by the foregoing Resolution which was 40 
passed at a  Meeting of the Annapolis City Council on _____, 2012; _____ voting in the 41 
affirmative, ____ voting in the negative, _____ abstaining and _____ absent and the said 42 
Resolution becomes effective in accordance with law on the __ day of _____ 2012.  43 
 44 
 45 
 46 
 47 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 48 
 49 
 50 

Page 52



CA-2-12 
Page 3 

 1 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 2 
 3 

EXPLANATION 4 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 5 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 6 
Underlining indicates amendments.  7 

Page 53



Policy Report 1 
 2 

CA-2-12  3 
 4 

Municipal Elections Coinciding with State of Maryland Elections in 2018  5 
and Onward 6 

 7 
The proposed charter amendment would amend the Charter of the City of Annapolis to 8 
establish the dates of the primary and general elections to coincide with the State of 9 
Maryland in 2018 and extend the length of time in office for the incoming City Council in 10 
December 2013 an additional year to December 2018 in order to facilitate this transition 11 
period. 12 

The proposed charter amendment is based on the recommendation of the 2011 13 
Annapolis Charter Revision Commission that reported: 14 

“City elections should be moved to coincide with state elections.  There are two 15 
primary reasons for doing this.  First, it saves the City money to piggyback on the 16 
state elections.  Second, it will almost certainly improve voter turnout, which is 17 
now embarrassingly low in City elections.”  18 

 19 
   20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst, Office of Law at 25 
JCCowles@annpolis.gov or (410) 263-1184. 26 
 27 

Page 54



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 
Charter Amendment No. CA-3-12 4 

 5 
Introduced by: Alderman Pfeiffer at the Request of the Charter Revision Commission 6 

 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 9/24/12   

 8 
 9 
A CHARTER AMENDMENT concerning 10 

City Finance Requirements 11 

FOR the purpose of amending the Charter of the City of Annapolis to establish an unrestricted 12 
fund balance as part of the annual budget process, authorizing an Audit Committee; and 13 
setting a time line for the Finance Director to provide the Comprehensive Annual 14 
Financial Report to the City Council. 15 

BY adding to the following portions of the City Charter: 16 
Article VII, Section 12 17 

 18 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 19 
COUNCIL that the Charter of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 20 

ARTICLE VII FINANCES, SECTION 12 – REQUIREMENTS. 21 

A. AS PART OF THE ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS, THE CITY COUNCIL SHALL 22 
ESTABLISH AN UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE AT A RATE IN LINE WITH BEST 23 
PRACTICES FOR MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS WITH THE GOAL OF SECURING A TRIPLE 24 
A BOND RATING FROM THE CREDIT RATING AGENCIES. 25 

B. THE CITY COUNCIL SHALL AUTHORIZE THE ESTABLISHMENT OF AN AUDIT 26 
COMMITTEE CONSISTING OF THE MAYOR, CITY MANAGER, ALDERMEN AND 27 
ALDERWOMEN, FINANCE DIRECTOR AND CITY RESIDENT REPRESENTATIVE(S) WITH 28 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTING INDUSTRY-WIDE BEST FINANCIAL 29 
MANAGEMENT PRACTICES. 30 

C. THE FINANCE DIRECTOR SHALL REPORT THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL 31 
FINANCIAL REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL BY JANUARY 31 OF EACH YEAR. 32 

 33 

Page 55



CA-3-12 
Page 2 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 1 
COUNCIL that the date of adoption of this Resolution is _____, 2012, and the amendments of 2 
the Charter of the City of Annapolis, hereby enacted shall become effective on _____, 2012, 3 
unless a proper petition for referendum hereon shall be filed as permitted by law within 40 days 4 
of adoption, provided a complete and exact copy of this Resolution shall be continuously posted 5 
on the bulletin board in the City Hall until _____, 2012, and provided further that a copy of the 6 
title of this Resolution shall be published in "The Capital", a newspaper of general circulation in 7 
the City of Annapolis, or in any other newspaper of such general circulation, once in each of the 8 
weeks on, _____, 2012, _______, 2012, _____, 2012, and _____, 2012. 9 
 10 
 SECTION III: AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 11 
COUNCIL that the Mayor is hereby specifically commanded to carry out the provisions of 12 
Section II hereof, and, as evidence of such compliance, the Mayor shall cause to be maintained 13 
appropriate certificates of publication of the newspaper or newspapers in which the title of the 14 
Resolution shall have been published and if a favorable referendum is held on the Charter 15 
change, shall declare the Charter change hereby enacted to be effective on _____, 2012, by 16 
affixing his signature hereto in the space provided on the effective date of change. 17 
 18 
 SECTION IV:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 19 
COUNCIL that as soon as the Charter Amendment hereby enacted shall become effective, 20 
either as provided herein or following a referendum, the Mayor shall send to the Maryland 21 
Department of Legislative Services a copy of this Resolution showing the number of Aldermen 22 
and Alderwomen voting for and against it and a report on the votes cast for or against the 23 
amendment hereby enacted at any referendum thereon and the date of such referendum. 24 
 25 
 The above Charter Amendment was enacted by the foregoing Resolution which was 26 
passed at a  Meeting of the Annapolis City Council on _____, 2012; _____ voting in the 27 
affirmative, ____ voting in the negative, _____ abstaining and _____ absent and the said 28 
Resolution becomes effective in accordance with law on the __ day of _____ 2012.  29 
 30 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 31 
 32 
 33 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City 
Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 34 
 35 

EXPLANATION 36 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 37 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 38 
Underlining indicates amendments.  39 

Page 56



Policy Report 1 
 2 

CA-3-12  3 
 4 

City Finance Requirements 5 

 6 

The proposed charter amendment would amend the Charter of the City of Annapolis to 7 
establish an unrestricted fund balance as part of the annual budget process, authorize 8 
the establishment of an Audit Committee, and set a time line of January 31 for the 9 
Finance Director to provide the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report to the City 10 
Council. 11 

 12 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst, Office of Law at 13 
JCCowles@annpolis.gov or (410) 263-1184. 14 

Page 57



O-36-12 
Page 1 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Ordinance No. O-36-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen and Alderman Arnett 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 9/24/12   

 8 
AN ORDINANCE concerning 9 

Permitted Hours of Sidewalk Cafes 10 

FOR the purpose of authorizing permitted sidewalk cafes to remain open during the normal 11 
business hours governing such establishments. 12 

BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the Code of the 13 
City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition 14 

 Chapter 7.42 15 
 16 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 17 
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 18 

Chapter 7.42 – Sidewalk Cafes 19 

7.42.010 - Sidewalk café—Defined—Permit required.  20 

A. A person shall not construct, maintain, use or operate a sidewalk café without first 21 
obtaining a permit as provided in this chapter.  22 

B. An application for a sidewalk café permit shall be made to the City Clerk on forms provided 23 
by the City Clerk. The application shall be made by the operating establishment.  24 

C. A sidewalk café permit shall be for one year from May 1st in each year until the following 25 
April 30th, except that, for the 1996-1997 term, the permit shall be valid from the date on which 26 
the permit is issued, even if prior to May 1, 1996. The holder of a permit shall pay an annual fee 27 
as established by resolution of the City Council. The annual fee shall be paid with the original 28 
permit application and with the request for renewal of the permit.  29 

D. For purposes of this chapter, "sidewalk café" means any area situated on a public sidewalk 30 
where food, refreshments, and/or beverages are sold by a restaurant, delicatessen, ice cream 31 
shop or coffee shop (hereinafter "operating establishment") for public consumption at tables or 32 
counters located on the sidewalk fronting the operating establishment. Sidewalk cafés shall 33 

Page 58



O-36-12 
Page 2 

operate only as authorized pursuant to this chapter.  1 

 2 

7.42.020 - Standards.  3 

A. No part of a sidewalk café area shall encroach upon any part of the sidewalk frontage of 4 
any adjacent premises, right-of-way or alley.  5 

B. A sidewalk café must leave a minimum six-foot unobstructed passageway for pedestrians 6 
along the length of the café. For operating establishments adjacent to sidewalks less than ten 7 
feet wide at the location of the proposed sidewalk café, the City Clerk, with the consent of the 8 
Department of Public Works, may reduce the unobstructed passageway to not less than that 9 
required by the Americans With Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) or its successors.  10 

C. The holder of a sidewalk café permit shall fully insure, indemnify, defend and hold 11 
harmless the City and in their capacity as such, the officers, agents and employees thereof from 12 
and against any and all claims and damages in any way arising out of or through the acts or 13 
omissions of the permit holder or its employees in the construction, operation, maintenance, 14 
use, placement or condition of the sidewalk café. An applicant for sidewalk café shall provide 15 
proof of such insurance before a permit may be issued or renewed under this chapter.  16 

D. A sidewalk café shall close and all café seating shall be removed from the café area no 17 
later than [eleven p.m.] THE PERMITTED CLOSING TIME OF THE OPERATING 18 
ESTABLISHMENT. The café area shall be cleared of all other furniture (excepting any furniture 19 
approved pursuant to Section 21.08.060(C) to remain in the café area overnight), debris and 20 
obstructions to the sidewalk no later than [midnight] THE PERMITTED CLOSING TIME OF 21 
THE OPERATING ESTABLISHMENT.  22 

E. An operating establishment shall not sell, serve or allow consumption of alcoholic 23 
beverages on its sidewalk café without obtaining the required license from the Alcoholic 24 
Beverage Control Board. Alcoholic beverages shall be served on the sidewalk café only in 25 
conjunction with the service of food. Notwithstanding any contrary or different hours of operation 26 
in its alcoholic beverages license, an operating establishment shall not sell, serve or allow 27 
consumption of alcoholic beverages on its sidewalk café after the [sidewalk café's] 28 
OPERATING ESTABLISHMENT’S PERMITTED closing time.  29 

F. Sidewalk café furniture shall comply with any and all guidelines adopted pursuant to 30 
Section 21.08.060(C) of this code. Except as otherwise provided pursuant to Section 31 
21.08.060(C), all sidewalk café furniture shall be readily moveable and shall be stored indoors 32 
when not in use. No permanent structures or improvements shall be installed in or near the café 33 
area.  34 

G. The following are prohibited in the café area: cooking of food; unshielded trash or refuse 35 
storage; advertisements (exclusive of menus intended to be read from café); outdoor 36 
entertainment, music, speakers, or public address system; exclusively carry-out transactions.  37 

H. A sidewalk café shall comply with all applicable building, health, safety, fire, zoning and 38 
environmental standards. 39 

Page 59



O-36-12 
Page 3 

 1 

7.42.030 - Existing sidewalk cafés.  2 

Sidewalk cafés in existence in the C2 district as of November 13, 1995 under authority of a 3 
lease agreement with the City, may, at the option of the lessee, continue to operate pursuant to 4 
either the existing terms of such lease agreement or the terms of this chapter.  5 

 6 

7.42.040 - Sidewalk café violation.  7 

The provisions of this chapter shall be enforced by the Department of Public Works. A person 8 
who continues to violate this chapter after a written request to take corrective action is guilty of a 9 
municipal infraction and shall be fined for each violation as established by resolution of the City 10 
Council plus costs. In addition, the City Council may revoke or suspend a permit issued 11 
pursuant to this chapter upon a second or subsequent conviction under this section in any 12 
twelve month period.  13 

 14 
 15 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 16 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage. 17 
 18 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 19 
 20 
 21 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 22 
 23 
 24 

EXPLANATION 25 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 26 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 27 
Underlining indicates amendments. 28 

Page 60



O-36-12 
Page 4 

O-36-12 
 

Permitted Hours of Sidewalk Cafes 

Policy Report 
 
The proposed ordinance would authorize permitted sidewalk cafes to remain open 
during the operating hours of such establishments.  For permitted sidewalk cafes, the 
operating hours for such establishments are authorized generally in the zoning code or 
may be subject to a special exception or restrictions from the Alcoholic Beverage 
Control Board (ABCB).  If there is a discrepancy in operating hours between a special 
exception or ABCB restrictions, the special exception operating hours prevail. 

 
 
 
Prepared by: Jessica Cowles, City of Annapolis Office of Law, JCCowles@annpolis.gov 
or (410) 263-1184. 

 

Page 61



O-30-12 
Page 1 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Ordinance No. O-30-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Alderman Arnett 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 9/24/12   

 8 
AN ORDINANCE concerning 9 

Parking and Storage of Automobiles, Motorcycles, Trailers, Motor Homes, Recreational 10 
Vehicles, Boats, and Personal Watercraft in Residential Zoning Districts  11 

FOR the purpose of designating certain areas for parking and storage of automobiles, 12 
motorcycles, trailers, motor homes, recreational vehicles, boats, and personal watercraft 13 
in residential zoning districts. 14 

BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the Code of the 15 
City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition 16 

 17 
 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 18 
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 19 

Chapter 17.40 – RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 20 

Article I - Definitions. 21 

17.40.265 - Property Maintenance Code.  22 

A. The International Property Maintenance Code, 2012 Edition, as published by the 23 
International Code Council, Inc., a copy of which is on file in the Department of Neighborhood 24 
and Environmental Programs, is adopted as the Property Maintenance Code of the City of 25 
Annapolis in the State of Maryland for the control of buildings and structures with the following 26 
amendments:  27 

1. In Section 101.1 for "[NAME OF JURISDICTION]" insert "City of Annapolis" 28 

2. In Section 103.5 for "[APPROPRIATE SCHEDULE]" insert "Fees established by 29 
resolution of the City Council" 30 

3. In Section 304.14 for "[DATES IN TWO LOCATIONS]" insert “April 15th - October 31 
31st" 32 

Page 62



O-30-12 
Page 2 

4. In Section 602.3 for "[DATES IN TWO LOCATIONS]" insert “April 15th - October 1 
31st" 2 

5. In Section 602.4 for "[DATES IN TWO LOCATIONS]" insert “April 15th - October 3 
31st" 4 

6. Strike the entire Section 404.5 Overcrowding and substitute Section 17.40.460 of the 5 
Code of the City of Annapolis. 6 

7. AMEND SECTION 302.8 TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 7 

302.8 Motor vehicles.   8 

302.8.1  MAINTENANCE.  Except as provided for in other regulations, no inoperative or 9 
unlicensed motor vehicle shall be parked, kept or stored on any premises, and no vehicle 10 
shall at any time be in a state of major disassembly, disrepair, or in the process of being 11 
stripped or dismantled. Painting of vehicles is prohibited unless conducted inside 12 
an approved spray booth.  13 

Exception: A vehicle of any type is permitted to undergo major overhaul, including body 14 
work, provided that such work is performed inside a structure or similarly enclosed area 15 
designed and approved for such purposes. 16 

302.8.2  STORAGE.  RESIDENT STORING OR PARKING OF, OR ALLOWING ANY 17 
OTHER PERSON TO STORE OR PARK, ANY AUTOMOBILE, MOTORCYCLE, 18 
TRAILER, MOTOR HOME, RECREATIONAL VEHICLE, BOAT, PERSONAL 19 
WATERCRAFT, OR ANY OTHER MOTOR VEHICLE SHALL BE LIMITED TO GARAGES, 20 
STREETS, OR CITY AUTHORIZED DRIVEWAYS OR PARKING LOTS WITHIN A 21 
RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT.  STORAGE OR PARKING IS NOT ALLOWED ON 22 
YARDS OR OTHER UNPAVED AREAS. 23 

B. In the event of any inconsistencies between the provisions of the International Property 24 
Maintenance Code and the City Code, the more stringent shall govern.  25 

Appendix A - Boarding standard shall be adopted as the City of Annapolis standard.  26 
 27 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 28 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage. 29 
 30 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 31 
 32 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 33 
EXPLANATION 34 

CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 35 
[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 36 

Underlining indicates amendments. 37 

Page 63



O-30-12 
Page 3 

O-30-12 
 

Designating Certain Areas for Parking and Storage of Automobiles, Motorcycles, 
Trailers, Motor Homes, Recreational Vehicles, Boats, and Personal 

Watercraft in Residential Zoning Districts  

 
R-39-12 

 
Fines Schedule Updated for Violations of Parking and Storage of Automobiles, 

Motorcycles, Trailers, Motor Homes, Recreational Vehicles, Boats, and Personal 
Watercraft in Undesignated Areas within Residential Zoning Districts 

 
Policy Report 

 
The proposed ordinance would designate garages, driveways, parking lots, and streets 
as the only areas for parking and storage of automobiles, motorcycles, trailers, motor 
homes, recreational vehicles, boats, personal watercraft, or other motor vehicles in the 
12 residential zoning districts.  The residential zoning districts include all districts 
beginning with an “R” and C1, Conservation Residence, and C1-A, Special 
Conservation Residence.    
 
The fine for violating this provision would be $25 for the first violation and $25 per 
violation per day for repeat or continuous violations. 
 
 
Prepared by: Jessica Cowles, City of Annapolis Office of Law, JCCowles@annpolis.gov 
or (410) 263-1184. 

 

Page 64



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-39-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Alderman Arnett 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 9/24/12   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 
 10 

Fines Schedule Updated for Violations of Parking and Storage of Automobiles, 11 
Motorcycles, Trailers, Motor Homes, Recreational Vehicles, Boats, and Personal 12 

Watercraft in Undesignated Areas within Residential Zoning Districts 13 
  14 
FOR the purpose of establishing a fine for parking and storage of automobiles, motorcycles, 15 

trailers, motor homes, recreational vehicles, boats, and personal watercraft in 16 
undesignated areas within residential zoning districts. 17 

 18 
WHEREAS,  Pending ordinance O-30-12 authorizes designated areas within residential zoning 19 

districts for parking and storage of automobiles, motorcycles, trailers, motor 20 
homes, recreational vehicles, boats, and personal watercraft as garages, 21 
driveways, parking lots, and streets; and 22 

 23 
WHEREAS,  R-39-12 establishes the fine for violations of O-30-12. 24 

 25 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the Fines 26 
Schedule is hereby amended as follows: 27 
 28 

Section in 
Code 

 
Section Name 

 
Fine for Initial Offense

Fine for Repeat or 
Continuous Violations

17.40.265 RESIDENTIAL 
PROPERTY 
MAINTENANCE CODE 
– PARKING IN 
UNDESIGNATED 
AREAS 

$25 PER VIOLATION $25 PER VIOLATION 
PER DAY 

 29 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Resolution 30 
shall take effect from the date of its passage. 31 

Page 65



R-39-12 
Page 2 

 1 
ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 2 

 3 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 4 
 5 

EXPLANATION 6 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 7 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 8 
Underlining indicates amendments.  9 

 10 

Page 66



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-42-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 9/24/12   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

Colonel John Ripley Memorial 5K Race 10 

FOR the purpose of authorizing City Council approval of the Colonel John Ripley Memorial 5K 11 
Race on November 4, 2012 per R-14-12, implementing a moratorium on administrative 12 
approvals for events at City Dock; and the reimbursement of full fees to the City for the 13 
cost associated with the event. 14 

WHEREAS, the Semper Fi Fund seeks the City’s approval through the City’s Special Event 15 
Application to hold an event on November 4, 2012 in Ward 2 and the City Dock 16 
area based on the following: 17 

 18 
 Location: Ward 2 and the City Dock area (see attached route race map). 19 
 The Semper Fi Fund, or its designee, is required to obtain all necessary 20 

City permits and comply with the terms of the Special Event Application for 21 
the safe execution of the event. 22 

 23 
 24 
WHEREAS, Section 6.04.210 of the City Code states that “whenever a person leases, uses 25 

or occupies a City facility, the person shall be charged and pay a minimum of 26 
full fees for the use of the facility.”  Examples of City facilities include public 27 
spaces, grounds, parks, athletic facilities, fields, docks, piers, wet slips, 28 
moorings, developable waters, buildings, motor vehicles, equipment, 29 
structures, rooms or other parts of public buildings.  Examples of City services 30 
include traffic control, crowd control, public safety support (police or fire), trash 31 
removal, sanitary services, recycling, bulk pick-up, the provision of water, 32 
sewer, electricity, communications or other utilities, transportation, and labor.  33 
Full fees “means the value of the right to lease, use or occupy the City facility 34 
as determined by the Finance Director in a fiscal impact note, plus all costs 35 
incurred by the City… including but not limited to utility costs and costs 36 
associated with municipal services (public safety, public works, custodial, 37 
renovations, repairs, maintenance, transportation and parking)…” 38 

 39 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the City 40 
Council authorizes this special event. 41 

Page 67



R-42-12 
Page 2 

 1 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that there shall be 2 
no waiver of full fees.  However, notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Director of 3 
Finance shall determine the full fees incurred by the City government and the organizers of the 4 
event shall reimburse the City for full fees. 5 
 6 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that a 7 
representative of the City will be present to resolve matters relating to this special event and 8 
his/her cell phone number shall be posted on the City’s website during the hours the event is 9 
open to the public. 10 
 11 
 12 

ADOPTED this _____  day of _______, ____. 13 
 14 
 15 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 16 
EXPLANATION 17 

CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 18 
[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 19 

Underlining indicates amendments.  20 

Page 68



Route Race Map 1 
 2 

 3 

Page 69



Staff Report 
 

R-42-12 
 

Colonel John Ripley Memorial 5K Race 

 
The proposed resolution would authorize City Council approval of the Colonel John 
Ripley Memorial 5K Race on November 4, 2012 per R-14-12, implementing a 
moratorium on administrative approvals for events at City Dock; and the reimbursement 
of full fees to the City for the cost associated with the event. 

 
Prepared by Michelle LeFurge, Special Events Coordinator at 
mmlefurge@annapolis.gov and Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov  

 

Page 70



R-43-12 
Page 1 

 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-43-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen and Alderman Arnett 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 9/24/12   

Economic Matters 9/24/12   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

Eastport Yacht Club Lights Parade 10 

FOR the purpose of authorizing City Council approval of the Eastport Yacht Club Lights 11 
Parade per R-14-12, implementing a moratorium on administrative approvals for events 12 
at City Dock and waiving the reimbursement of full fees to the City for the cost 13 
associated with the event on December 8, 2012. 14 

WHEREAS, the Eastport Yacht Club seeks the City’s approval through the City’s Special 15 
Event Application to hold a parade on Spa Creek based on the following: 16 

 17 
 Time of activities: 5:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.  18 
 Event is open to the public free of charge. 19 
 Location: Spa Creek and Susan Campbell Park. 20 
 The Eastport Yacht Association, or its designee, is required to obtain all 21 

necessary City permits and comply with the terms of the Special Event 22 
Application for the safe execution of the event. 23 

 24 
WHEREAS, Section 6.04.210 of the City Code states that “whenever a person leases, uses 25 

or occupies a City facility, the person shall be charged and pay a minimum of 26 
full fees for the use of the facility.”  Examples of City facilities include public 27 
spaces, grounds, parks, athletic facilities, fields, docks, piers, wet slips, 28 
moorings, developable waters, buildings, motor vehicles, equipment, 29 
structures, rooms or other parts of public buildings.  Examples of City services 30 
include traffic control, crowd control, public safety support (police or fire), trash 31 
removal, sanitary services, recycling, bulk pick-up, the provision of water, 32 
sewer, electricity, communications or other utilities, transportation, and labor.  33 
Full fees “means the value of the right to lease, use or occupy the City facility 34 
as determined by the Finance Director in a fiscal impact note, plus all costs 35 
incurred by the City… including but not limited to utility costs and costs 36 

Page 71



R-43-12 
Page 2 

associated with municipal services (public safety, public works, custodial, 1 
renovations, repairs, maintenance, transportation and parking)…” 2 

 3 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the City 4 
Council authorizes this special event. 5 
 6 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that there shall be 7 
a waiver of full fees. 8 
 9 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that a 10 
representative of the City will be present to resolve matters relating to this special event and 11 
his/her cell phone number shall be posted on the City’s website during the hours the event is 12 
open to the public. 13 
 14 
 15 

ADOPTED this ___ day of ____, ____. 16 
 17 
 18 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 19 
EXPLANATION 20 

CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 21 
[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 22 

Underlining indicates amendments.  23 
 24 

Page 72



R-43-12 
Page 3 

 

Staff Report 
 

R-43-12 
 

Eastport Yacht Club Lights Parade 

 
The proposed resolution would authorize City Council approval of the Eastport Yacht 
Club Lights Parade per R-14-12, implementing a moratorium on administrative 
approvals for events at City Dock and waiving the reimbursement of full fees to the City 
for the cost associated with the event on December 8, 2012. 
 
 
 
Prepared by Michelle LeFurge, Special Events Coordinator at 
mmlefurge@annapolis.gov and Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov  

 

Page 73



R-44-12 
Page 1 

 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-44-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 9/24/12   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

TCS Annapolis Half Marathon 10 

FOR the purpose of authorizing City Council approval of the TCS Annapolis Half Marathon 11 
per R-14-12, implementing a moratorium on administrative approvals for events at City 12 
Dock; designating Saturday, December 1, 2012 as a date for the sale of arts-related 13 
merchandise in the Historic District in conjunction with the event; and the reimbursement 14 
of full fees to the City for the cost associated with the event. 15 

WHEREAS, the TCS Half Marathon seeks the City’s approval through the City’s Special 16 
Event Application to hold an event on December 1, 2012 in Ward 1 and the 17 
City Dock area based on the following: 18 

 19 
 Location: Ward 1 and the City Dock area. 20 
 The TCS Half Marathon (Second Wind Productions), or its designee, is 21 

required to obtain all necessary City permits and comply with the terms of 22 
the Special Event Application for the safe execution of the event. 23 

 Vendors will be located in consultation with the Special Events Coordinator; 24 
each vendor must obtain a City vendor’s permit and must post applicable 25 
business licenses.  26 

 27 
WHEREAS, Section 7.40.090 of the City Code allows the City Council to designate certain 28 

days when peddlers, hawkers and itinerant merchants may sell in the Historic 29 
District or a nonresidential area; and 30 

 31 
WHEREAS, Section 6.04.210 of the City Code states that “whenever a person leases, uses 32 

or occupies a City facility, the person shall be charged and pay a minimum of 33 
full fees for the use of the facility.”  Examples of City facilities include public 34 
spaces, grounds, parks, athletic facilities, fields, docks, piers, wet slips, 35 
moorings, developable waters, buildings, motor vehicles, equipment, 36 
structures, rooms or other parts of public buildings.  Examples of City services 37 
include traffic control, crowd control, public safety support (police or fire), trash 38 
removal, sanitary services, recycling, bulk pick-up, the provision of water, 39 
sewer, electricity, communications or other utilities, transportation, and labor.  40 

Page 74



R-44-12 
Page 2 

Full fees “means the value of the right to lease, use or occupy the City facility 1 
as determined by the Finance Director in a fiscal impact note, plus all costs 2 
incurred by the City… including but not limited to utility costs and costs 3 
associated with municipal services (public safety, public works, custodial, 4 
renovations, repairs, maintenance, transportation and parking)…” 5 

 6 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the City 7 
Council authorizes this special event. 8 
 9 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that sales of 10 
merchandise may be sold in conjunction with the TCS Annapolis Half Marathon event on 11 
December 1, 2012. 12 
 13 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that there shall be 14 
no waiver of full fees.  However, notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Director of 15 
Finance shall determine the full fees incurred by the City government and the organizers of the 16 
event shall reimburse the City for full fees. 17 
 18 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that a 19 
representative of the City will be present to resolve matters relating to this special event and 20 
his/her cell phone number shall be posted on the City’s website during the hours the event is 21 
open to the public. 22 
 23 
 24 

ADOPTED this _____  day of _______, ____. 25 
 26 
 27 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 28 
EXPLANATION 29 

CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 30 
[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 31 

Underlining indicates amendments.  32 

Page 75



R-44-12 
Page 3 

 
 

 
Staff Report 

 
R-44-12 

 
TCS Annapolis Half Marathon 

 
The proposed resolution would authorize City Council approval of the TCS Annapolis 
Half Marathon per R-14-12, implementing a moratorium on administrative approvals for 
events at City Dock; designate Saturday, December 1, 2012 as a date for the sale of 
arts-related merchandise in the Historic District in conjunction with the event; and the 
reimbursement of full fees to the City for the cost associated with the event. 

 

 
Prepared by Michelle LeFurge, Special Events Coordinator at 
mmlefurge@annapolis.gov and Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov  

 

Page 76



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-45-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12   12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Public Safety 9/24/12   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

Abney Lane 10 

FOR the purpose of declaring that South Bates Street in the College Creek Terrace 11 
Community shall be renamed “Abney Lane” to honor the contributions of the Abney 12 
Family to the City of Annapolis. 13 

WHEREAS, The Housing Authority of the City of Annapolis (HACA) has been dedicating 14 
buildings, streets, and communities after individuals who have given their time 15 
and energy to the advancement of public housing residents; and 16 

17 
WHEREAS, the newly renovated College Creek Terrace Community is about to be leased 18 

for low income housing stewards; and 19 
 20 
WHEREAS, HACA has recommended renaming South Bates Street in the College Creek 21 

Terrace Community after the Abney Family, the first family to reside in low 22 
income housing in the State of Maryland; and   23 

24 
WHEREAS, the April 17, 1940 Evening Capital stated that “The Housing Authority considers 25 

the Abneys a good example of the type of young family which low rent housing 26 
is designed to benefit: industrious and thrifty;” and 27 

 28 
WHEREAS, since the Abney family has served the City of Annapolis and the stewards of 29 

public housing for over 42 years, renaming South Bates Street where they 30 
once resided is a fitting honor; and 31 

 32 
WHEREAS,  the renaming of this street does not conflict with any other City street names 33 

nor Anne Arundel County street names in the Annapolis area. 34 
 35 
 36 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that South 37 
Bates Street in the College Creek Terrace Community shall be renamed “Abney Lane” in honor 38 
of the Abney family. 39 

Page 77



R-45-12 
Page 2 

AND BT IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that all  1 
“Abney Lane” street signage shall bear the former designation of South Bates Street, as is the 2 
custom on other street signs in the City of Annapolis. 3 
 4 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that a copy of this 5 
resolution shall be provided to the Abney family. 6 
 7 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 8 
 9 
 10 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 

EXPLANATION 16 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 17 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 18 
Underlining indicates amendments.  19 

 20 

Page 78



Map of Proposed Street Name Change: 
South Bates Street to Abney Lane 

Page 79



Policy Report 
 

R-45-12 
 

Abney Lane 

 
The proposed resolution would rename South Bates Street in the College Creek 
Terrace Community to Abney Lane to honor the Abney family’s contributions to the City 
of Annapolis. 

 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  

 

Page 80



Boards and Commissions Appointments and Reappointments 
 

September 24, 2012 
 
 

New Appointments  
 
 Reverend Johnny Calhoun   Economic Development  Corporation              
 Mr. Mike Miron    Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 
 
 
Reappointments 
 
 Mr. Randall Adams   Port Wardens 
 Mr. Gene Godley (Chair)   Port Wardens 
 Mr. Willie Sampson   Port Wardens 
 Mr. Lawrence Littig   Port Wardens 
 
 Ms. Christina Aist    Recreation Advisory Board 
 Ms. Patricia Moyer   Recreation Advisory Board 
 Ms. Virginia Rankin    Recreation Advisory Board 
 Mr. John Rodger Moyer   Recreation Advisory Board 
 Mr. Frank Montgomery   Recreation Advisory Board 
 Mr. Raymond Lowman   Recreation Advisory Board 
 
 

Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114


	9-24-12 Closed Session Agenda
	9-24-12 Closed Session
	9-24-12 Agenda
	9-24-12 Public Hearing
	CA-4-12 EPARM
	CA-4-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	O-27-12 CPA Requirement
	O-27-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	O-28-12 MPDUs
	O-28-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	O-16-12 Unsolicited Materials
	O-16-12 Amendments
	O-16-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	O-16-12 Public Safety
	O-16-12 Public Safety July Report
	O-16-12 Public Safety September
	R-34-12 Unsolicited Materials Fine
	R-34-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	R-34-12 Public Safety
	R-34-12 Public Safety September
	R-41-12 Phelps Lane
	R-41-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	R-41-12 Public Safety
	CA-1-12 Non-partisan Elections
	CA-2-12 Election Dates
	CA-3-12 Finance Requirements
	O-36-12 Sidewalk Cafes
	O-30-12 Parking on Yards
	R-39-12 Parking on Yards Fine
	R-42-12 Ripley 5K
	R-43-12 Lights Parade
	R-44-12 TCS Race
	R-45-12 Abney Lane
	9-24-12 Appointments



